#### CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Children and Families Committee** held on Monday, 14th February, 2022 in the Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

#### **PRESENT**

Councillor K Flavell (Chair)
Councillor C Bulman (Vice-Chair)

Councillors M Addison, L Anderson, M Beanland, J Buckley, D Edwardes, S Handley, G Hayes, I Macfarlane, J Saunders, L Smetham and L Smith

#### **OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE**

Deborah Woodcock, Executive Director of Children's Services Claire Williamson, Interim Director of Early Help and Prevention Mark Bayley, Acting Director of Education and 14-19 Skills (Attended virtually via Microsoft Teams)

Deborah Nickson, Legal Team Manager (People) and Deputy Monitoring Officer

Joanne Wilcox, Head of Financial Management Steve Reading, Principal Accountant Josie Lloyd, Democratic Services Officer

# **54 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE**

There were no apologies for absence.

# 55 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

In the interest of openness, the following declarations were made:

Councillor Beanland declared that he was a bursar for a primary school and would leave the meeting before the debate and vote took place for item 6, Schools Funding Formula and Early Years Funding Formula 2022/23. The Chair would allow Councillor Beanland to speak on the item before leaving the meeting.

Assurance was received from the Committee's legal officer, Deborah Nickson, that school governance was not considered a pecuniary interest for any matters on the agenda as the role of school governor would fall into personal interests and be non-pecuniary. Councillor Bulman, Councillor Edwardes and Councillor Smith therefore declared non-pecuniary interests due to being school governors.

Councillor Hayes declared an interest in respect of items 10 and 11 as he chairs a multi academy trust in Cheshire West and would leave the meeting ahead of discussion or debate on these items.

# **56 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING**

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2022 be approved as a correct record.

#### 57 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

There were no public speakers.

# 58 COVID-19 SCHOOLS UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE)

Mark Bayley, Acting Director of Education and 14 – 19 Skills, provided an update on the Covid-19 position in schools. Overall the situation was positive with recent data showing the infection rate declining, however high rates still remained in primary and secondary age groups. Challenges remained with staff absences and a number of measures were in place to address this, including movement of staff and combining classes. Pupil attendance in both primary and secondary schools was above the national average and was monitored closely. Attendance was slightly higher in primary schools and a query was raised as to why this was. While this could be attributed to a number of factors, it was agreed that a further breakdown of the information would be provided to the committee. The vaccination rollout continued with good uptake.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the update be noted.

# 59 SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA AND EARLY YEARS FUNDING FORMULA 2022/23

Councillor Beanland left the meeting ahead of the debate and vote.

The committee received the report which requested approval of the schools funding formula and early years funding formula following recommendations from the Schools Forum.

Paragraph 3.3 had been removed from the recommendations after publication of the report as this had been subject to approval from the Department for Education which had not been received.

A query was raised regarding the number of maintained schools in a deficit position and it was agreed that this would be provided in a written response.

It was requested that the relevant ward members be informed if schools in their ward would cease to receive funding for rurality.

A query was raised regarding the Council's disapplication to the Department for Education to reverse the decision of the Schools Forum against the transfer of high needs, and whether there had been delegated authority to officers for this. It was agreed that a written response would be provided.

# **RESOLVED** (unanimously):

- 1. That the Committee approves the following for the adoption of the schools funding formula 2022/23:
  - (i) The use of a local funding formula that uses the national funding formula factors, uplifted for the Cheshire East area cost adjustment, and with any additional funding being allocated via the basic entitlement factor.
  - (ii) The use of +0.5% as the minimum funding guarantee percentage. This means that individual school funding levels should increase by +0.5% compared to the 2021/22 levels (subject to the items included in minimum funding guarantee protection) and excluding pupil number changes.
  - (iii) The Growth Fund at £0.8m.
- 2. That the Committee approves the following for the adoption of the early years funding formula 2022/23:
  - (i) The continued use of the current funding formula and agrees to increase the hourly rates by the same percentage increase as the increased funding from the Department for Education.
  - (ii) The new funding rates. The rates for 2021/22 are shown at Appendix 4 and the proposed rates for 2022/23 are set out at Appendix 5.
  - (iii) The revised classifications for rurality are introduced from 1 April 2022. Three childcare providers would cease to be classified as Rural and should cease to receive funding for rurality from 1 April 2022.
  - (iv) Delegated authority to the Director of Prevention and Support to enter into revised contracts with providers in accordance with the Department for Education funding increase.

# 60 PROGRESS UPDATE ON THE CHILDREN AND FAMILIES MENTAL HEALTH SPOTLIGHT REVIEW

Councillor Beanland returned to the meeting.

The committee received the report which provided an update on progress made against the recommendations approved in October 2020 as a result of the spotlight review into Children and Families mental wellbeing services.

It was noted that this was an update report and that a full report would be brought to committee at a later date with further detail. A request was made for the full report to tie in with the performance scorecard to understand the impact this work was having and a further request was made for this to include practical examples of the work being done.

A concern was raised about supporting children and young people through the cost of living crisis and it was requested that members are engaged with on a ward level on the strategy for addressing this.

A query was raised regarding which hospitals the Council was receiving data from, whether this included hospitals outside the borough and whether this data related only to self-harm or if it included domestic abuse. A written response would be provided.

A further query was raised in relation to the letter sent by the Leader to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care and the Minister for Education and whether a response had been received. A written response would be provided.

## **RESOLVED**:

That the report be noted.

# 61 WORK PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to the Committee's work programme.

A request was made for an update report on the Best4Business programme and how it had been delivered and received in schools, including feedback and lessons learned.

A query was raised regarding the performance scorecard and why the presentation format had changed from the previous Excel spreadsheet. It was agreed that the presentation of the data would be looked into for future reports.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the work programme be noted.

#### **62 MINUTES OF SUB COMMITTEES**

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the Local Authority School Governor Nomination Sub Committee and the Corporate Parenting Committee be noted.

# 63 SCHOOL ORGANISATION: NEW NANTWICH PRIMARY SCHOOL (KINGSLEY FIELDS) - AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT INCLUSIVE OF PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Councillor Hayes left the meeting and did not return.

The committee received the report on the new Kingsley Fields primary school in Nantwich.

# **RESOLVED** (unanimously):

That committee gives approval to provide authority to the Executive Director of Children's Services to award a construction contract for the provision of a new one form entry primary school in Nantwich, inclusive of any other agreements associated with or ancillary to the contract.

# **64 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC**

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following item pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the information.

## 65 DRAFT SCHOOL SPECIFICATION DOCUMENT (KINGSLEY FIELDS)

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the committee note the draft school specification for Kingsley Fields.

The meeting commenced at 10.35 and concluded at 12.25

Councillor K Flavell (Chair)